








Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2011/12Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 211,852.00 205,167.00 20,728.27 184,571.17 132.44-Teachers Salaries

1120 4,990.00 4,990.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 71,063.00 58,857.00 5,885.72 52,971.48 .20-Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 40,428.00 45,796.00 3,783.14 42,012.76 .10 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 323,343.00 309,820.00 30,397.13 284,545.41 5,122.54-

2100 100,148.00 100,713.00 12,204.20 84,680.33 3,828.47 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2120 1,219.00 1,219.00-Classified Substitutes

2200 4,888.00 9,888.00 732.18 4,770.48 4,385.34 Classified Support Salaries

2300 96,038.00 96,353.00 7,928.00 87,778.00 647.00 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 107,771.00 113,456.00 9,843.21 103,770.60 157.81-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,144.00 6,946.00 4,386.00 2,560.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 314,989.00 327,356.00 30,707.59 286,604.41 10,044.00 

3101 26,733.00 25,734.00 2,507.76 23,096.32 129.92 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 300.00 300.00 30.00 270.58 .58-STRS Classified Positions

3201 143.00 207.54 207.54-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 44,369.00 44,068.00 3,771.30 40,445.92 149.22-PERS Classified Positions

3301 187.00 164.93 164.93-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 18,614.00 18,702.00 1,816.75 16,868.40 16.85 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,636.00 4,562.00 434.09 4,295.48 167.57-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,716.00 4,435.00 429.96 3,995.45 9.59 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 76,725.00 73,095.00 7,309.46 65,785.10 .44 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 83,711.00 83,581.00 7,218.65 76,492.91 130.56-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 5,154.00 5,147.00 489.38 4,842.91 185.29-SUI Certificated

3502 5,347.00 5,105.00 494.40 4,534.54 76.06 SUI Classified

3601 8,966.00 8,887.00 872.87 8,163.11 148.98-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 8,368.00 8,928.00 865.64 8,045.77 16.59 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3701 21,054.00 27,731.00 16,265.79 11,465.21 OPEB, Allocated Certificated

3801 48.00 39.84 39.84-PERS Reduction Recapture

3802 5,855.00 5,681.00 493.57 5,159.16 28.27 PERS Reduction Recapture

Total for Object 3000 314,926.00 315,956.00 26,733.83 278,673.75 10,548.42 

4100 313.00 638.00 1,018.55 380.55-Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 1,613.00 4,563.00 5,250.00 687.00-Library and Reference Material

4300 15,757.00 16,463.00 1,087.25 5,981.85 9,393.90 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,600.00 1,600.00 550.91 1,049.09 Custodial Supplies

4330 6,000.00 6,000.00 701.83 5,298.17 Office Supplies

4350 7,000.00 7,000.00 503.18 774.21 5,722.61 Vehicle Upkeep

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2012, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), May 31 2012  3:29PM
001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3701
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3802
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2011/12Balances through May

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4399 7,840.00 7,840.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 8,940.00 8,940.00 1,849.20 7,090.80 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 41,223.00 53,044.00 1,590.43 16,126.55 35,327.02 

5100 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 26,774.00 28,634.00 4,427.17 18,869.18 5,337.65 Travel and Conference

5300 16,321.00 16,321.00 9,138.93 7,182.07 Dues and Membership

5400 10,702.00 10,702.00 8,968.00 1,734.00 Insurance

5500 10,000.00 10,000.00 111.66 6,055.00 3,833.34 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 8,603.00 8,103.00 229.91 498.91 7,374.18 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 6,000.00 6,000.00 2,500.00 7,600.00 4,100.00-Professional Consulting

5801 40,386.00 31,093.00 19,783.25 192.75 11,117.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 175.00 50.00- 375.00 Legal Publications

5805 700.00 700.00 68.00 374.00 258.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 103.11 1,126.89 270.00 Other Services & Fees

5810 247,903.00 273,351.00 52,077.17 173,052.63 48,221.20 Contracted Services

5899 750.21 1,305.34 2,055.55-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 4,000.00 4,000.00 997.65 3,002.35 Communications

Total for Object 5000 425,389.00 442,904.00 80,225.48 228,129.28 134,549.24 

6400 34,728.00 28,941.31 5,786.69 Equipment

7110 105,780.00 139,705.00 145,000.00 4,855.71- 439.29-County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 139,780.00 96,511.00 31,398.78 46,973.22 18,139.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 245,560.00 236,216.00 176,398.78 42,117.51 17,699.71 

1,665,430.00 1,720,024.00 346,053.24 1,165,138.22 208,832.54 Total for Expense accounts

208,832.54 1,665,430.00 1,720,024.00 346,053.24 1,165,138.22 Total for Org 001, Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2012, Period = 11, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Fund = 01, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), May 31 2012  3:29PM
001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=49321&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310


 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

May 8, 2012 

Loyalton Middle School, Room 4, Loyalton, California 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT:  Mr. Allen Wright President 

   Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President  

   Mr.  Jeff Bosworth, Clerk – Arrived at 6:05 pm 

   Mr.  Mike Moore, Member 

   Mr.  Todd York, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     None     

 

 VACANT:     None 

 

STAFF:  Mr. Stan Hardeman, Superintendent 

 Ms. Rose Asquith, Business Manager 

 Ms. Hannah Tomatis, Administrative Assistant 

 Ms. Marla Stock, Site Administrator 

 Mr. Derek Cooper, Site Administrator  

 Ms. Marlene Mongolo/Testing/SELPA Director 

     

C. FLAG SALUTE 

 

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA with the following changes: Action Item I,2,a, Approval of 

Resolution No. 11-008 moved to Action Item I,1,a(1) and Mr. Pat Doyle, SPTA representative, will 

make a presentation in regards to Item I,2,h out of order due to his immediate involvement as a coach 

in a little league baseball game. 

MSCU/MOORE/YORK  

 

E.  INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Correspondence 

 

2. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Employee Recognition-Sue Gressel 

b. Secure Rural Schools – No further updates  

c. Technology Presentation-Blaine Donnelly, Technology Coordinator 

 Mr. Donnelly reviewed the three-year technology plan (2010/11 through 2012/13) with the 

 Board, including past and future needs.  

 The meeting was adjourned to room 6 where Mark Fisher, Loyalton Middle School teacher, 

 organized his students to give a brief demonstration of the ipad, SMART Board and AppleTV 

 utilized in his classroom.   

d. Mrs. Camille Alfred, Loyalton Middle School teacher, gave a power point presentation about 

 Loyalton Middle School students’ trip to Washington, DC, via WorldStrides school trips.  

e. Transitional Kindergarten –Projected Kindergarten enrollment for 2012-13: Downieville: 3, 

 Loyalton: 20. 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 8, 2012 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

2 

 

f. Pat Doyle, Loyalton Elementary School Teacher and Sierra Plumas Teachers Association 

 representative, read the Sunshine Proposal from the S-PTA to S-PJUSD stating they are not 

 requesting to open any further articles for the 2012-13 school year. 

 

3. Business Report 

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/11 to 4/30/12; there were no comments.  

b. Letter from California Department of Education regarding fiscal solvency was discussed.  

 

4. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 

 Ms. Asquith mentioned the employees’ health evaluation scheduled by Tri Counties Insurance 

Group for March 24 and 25, 2012. 

  

5. SPTA Report (5 minutes) – There was none 

 

6. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes)   

 DRYDEN mentioned that a representative from Tri Counties Insurance Group gave a presentation 

on the health benefits plan.  Those employee organizations represented were confidential, 

classified, board of education and administration.  A discussion regarding board members health 

benefits plan was requested for the June agenda.  

 

7. Public Comment  
a. Current location - None 

b. Videoconference location - None 

 

F.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

The following items were included in the consent calendar: 

 

1.  Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held April 10, 2012 

2.  Approval of bill warrants for month of April 2012 

 MSCU/YORK/BOSWORTH 

 

G.   PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
 

At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the following Closed Session 

items: 

 

1. Government Code §54957.6, Labor Negotiations, Employer’s initial 2012-2013 collective 

bargaining unit proposal to Sierra-Plumas Classified Employees’ Association 

 

2. Government Code §54957.6, Labor Negotiations, Employer’s initial 2012-2013 bargaining 

unit proposal to Sierra-Plumas Confidential Employees 

 

3. Government Code §54957.6, Labor Negotiations, Employer’s initial 2012-2013 bargaining 

unit proposal to Sierra-Plumas Administrative Employees  

 

H. CLOSED SESSION – 7:20 pm 

 

The Board of Trustees moved into Closed Session to consider and/or take action upon the preceding 

items. 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 8, 2012 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

3 

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION - 7:55 pm 

 

REPORT OUT  

The proposals were discussed. Regarding the reduction of the work year, any reduction in work days 

would be contingent upon all four working groups agreeing to the same language.  

  

I.  ACTION ITEMS 

 

1.  OLD BUSINESS 

 

a. (1)  Adoption of Resolution No. 11-008, Absence From School for Religious Exercises or 

Instruction 

MSCU/MOORE/BOSWORTH 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

BOSWORTH:  AYE 

DRYDEN:        AYE 

MOORE:           AYE 

WRIGHT:         AYE 

YORK:              AYE 

 

a. Adoption of Administrative Regulation 3314, Payment for Goods and Services, revision 

  DRYDEN motioned to approve Items G,1, a, b and c simultaneously. 

 MSCU/DRYDEN/YORK 

 

b. Adoption of Board Policy 5113, Absences and Excuses, revision  

 

c. Adoption of Administrative Regulation 5113,  Absences and Excuses, revision 

 

2.  NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. Adoption of Resolution No. 11-008, Absence From School for Religious Exercises or 

Instruction  

 

b. Presentation of the employer’s 2012-2013 collective bargaining unit initial proposal to Sierra-

Plumas Classified Employees’ Association 

 MSCU/MOORE/YORK  

 

c. Public Hearing on the employer’s 2012-2013 initial proposal to Sierra-Plumas Classified 

Employees’ Association 

 There was no public comment. 

 

d. Presentation of the employer’s 2012-2013 initial proposal to Confidential Employees 

MSCU/YORK/DRYDEN 

 

e. Public Hearing on the employer’s 2012-2013 initial proposal to Confidential Employees 

 There was no public comment. 

 

f. Presentation of the employer’s 2012-2013 initial proposal to Administrative Employees 

MSCU/YORK/MOORE 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 8, 2012 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

4 

 

g. Public Hearing the 2012-2013 initial proposal to Administrative Employees 

 There was no public comment. 

 

h. Presentation of the Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association initial response to the employer’s 

initial 2012-2013 collective bargaining agreement proposal (See E,2,f)   

 

i. Public Hearing on the Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association initial response to employer’s 

2012-2013 collective bargaining agreement proposal 

 There was no public comment. 

 

j. Adoption of Resolution No. 11-007, Set Superintendent’s Salary  

  YORK/MOORE 

  ROLL CALL VOTE 

BOSWORTH:  AYE 

DRYDEN:        NO 

MOORE:           AYE 

WRIGHT:         AYE 

YORK:              AYE 

This resolution divides the County and District Superintendent position 15/85.  

DRYDEN stated that she is opposed to splitting the salary, but affirms Mr. Hardeman’s 

performance as superintendent. 

 

k. Authorization to ratify Employee Agreement between Sierra County Office of Education, 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Stanford J. Hardeman 

MSCU/YORK/MOORE 

 

l. Public Hearing for Testimony Regarding Acceptance of Tier III Categorical Funds and 

Proposed Uses for fiscal year 2012-2013 was held at 8:13 pm. 

  Programs closed subject to Tier III funding:  None Proposed.  Ms. Asquith indicated that there was 

a clarification to the agenda. No programs were closed from the prior year.  The spreadsheet 

attached to the agenda reflects activity since the inception of the Tier III Flexibility. 

 

m. Adoption of Resolution No. 11-009, Tier III Categorical Flexibility 

MSCU/YORK/DRYDEN  

ROLL CALL VOTE 

BOSWORTH:  AYE 

DRYDEN:        AYE 

MOORE:           AYE 

WRIGHT:         AYE 

YORK:              AYE 

 

n. Presentation of the 2012-2013 Preliminary Budget  

Ms. Asquith reviewed the preliminary budget for 2012-2013.   

 

  BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  

MOORE moved to approve Items “o” through “v” unless there were individual policies to 

discuss. 

DRYDEN requested pulling Item “s” for discussion.  The motion was made by MOORE to 

pull item “s” for discussion and approve items “o” through “r” and items “t” through “v”.  

DRYDEN seconded. Motion Passed Unanimously. 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 8, 2012 

 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES 

5 

 

o. Adoption of Administrative Regulation 5125, Student Records, revision 

 

p. Adoption of Board Policy 5141.21, Administering Medication and Monitoring Health 

Conditions, revision 

 

q. Adoption of Administrative Regulation  5141.21, Administering Medication and Monitoring 

Health Conditions, revision 

 

r. Adoption of Board Policy 6143, Courses of Study, revision 

 

s. PULLED FOR DISCUSSION: 

Adoption of Administrative Regulation 6143, Courses of Study, revision 

 DRYDEN stated that her constituents have approached her in opposition to this new 

requirement.  MOORE moved that the following sections, “Grades 1-6, 3a” and “Grades 7-12, 

2a”, be edited as follows: 

  

Instruction shall include the early history of California and a study of the role and 

contributions of all men and women.  Instruction shall also include the economic, 

political, and social development of California and the United States. 
MSCU/MOORE/DRYDEN 

 

t. Adoption of Board Policy 6146.1, High School Graduation Requirements, revision 

 

u. Adoption of Administrative Regulation 6146.1, High School Graduation Requirements, 

revision 

 

v. Adoption of Administrative Regulation 6162.51 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program, 

revision 

 

J.  ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

The next regular meeting of the Board will be held on Tuesday, June 12, 2012, at Downieville School, 

Downieville, California at 6:00 pm. 

 

Suggested Agenda Items 

 

a. Public Hearing and Budget Adoption 

b. Expulsion Plan Review 

c. Health Benefits options for Board members 

d. Secure Rural Schools 

 

K.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

MSCU/MOORE/ YORK  

Adjourned at 8:24 pm. 

 

 

 

__________________________     _______________________________ 

Jeff Bosworth, Clerk      Stanford J. Hardeman, Superintendent 



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 05/01/2012 through 05/31/2012

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

ARISE FOUNDATION 01-430005/09/201200013464 186.29 

Unpaid Sales Tax 12.59- 173.70 

HEIDI BETHKE 01-520005/09/201200013465 42.00 

EASTERN PLUMAS HEALTHCARE 01-580505/09/201200013466 118.00 

EMBASSY SUITES 01-520005/09/201200013467 235.96 

COATES/LES SCHAWB TIRE CENTER 01-435005/09/201200013468 162.42 

01-5600 81.21 

01-5899 324.84 81.21 

LIBERTY ENERGY 01-550005/09/201200013469 144.90 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-581005/09/201200013470 4,000.00 

MARLENE MONGOLO 01-520005/09/201200013471 29.00 

VOYAGER 01-435005/09/201200013472 29.38 

01-5200 60.01 

01-5899 212.61 123.22 

BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH 01-520005/23/201200013473 215.00 

CCSESA 01-520005/23/201200013474 300.00 

ELECTRO ACOUSTIC CO., INC. 01-581005/23/201200013475 150.38 

GIRARD, EDWARDS & HANCE ATTS 01-580105/23/201200013476 216.75 

HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS YREKA 01-520005/23/201200013477 33.79 

01-5899 135.16 101.37 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-581005/23/201200013478 4,000.00 

MARLENE MONGOLO 01-520005/23/201200013479 88.41 

SUZI SCHOENSEE 01-953505/23/201200013480 2.00 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE          OF 

EDUCATION

01-580805/23/201200013481 72.39 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-953505/23/201200013482 3,229.00 

76-9576 16,918.00 13,689.00 

ALLEN WRIGHT 01-520005/23/201200013483 20.82 

27,399.92 Total Number of Checks 20 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 20 13,723.51 01

Payroll Clearing 1 13,689.00 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 27,412.51 

12.59-

27,399.92 

20 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), May 31 2012  3:36PM001 - Sierra Co Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.

























































































































































































            
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Negotiations:  Confidential 2012_13 EMPLOYEE COUNTER  Proposal June 2012                             Page 1 of 5 

 

CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES COUNTER PROPOSAL TO THE 

 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD (District) 

AND SIERRA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 

Presented June 12, 2012 

 

2012-2013 FISCAL YEAR: 

1. SALARY 
 

a. No increase in the Confidential employee salary schedule  
 
Confidential Employees have no objection. 

 

2. HEALTH BENEFITS 
 

a. The Employer (District and SCOE) proposes to cap the Employers’ 
contribution in the amount of $13,840.50 per year per employee toward the 
premiums and/or Health Savings Account contributions for health insurance 
plans (medical, dental, vision and life) on a composite rate.  

 
Confidential Employees have no objection to the Employer cap contribution.  
 
Confidential Employees agree to an open enrollment into TCSIG structured plans on 
a composite rate, including Consumer Driven High Deductible Plan (CDHD) and 
Health Savings Account (HSA) options are viable. Confidential Employees require 
that HSA contributions, for participating employees, are contributed in equal 
installments over 11 or 12 months, whichever applies to the position. 

 

3. DAYS AND HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT 
 

a. The Employer proposes to reduce the 2012-2013 work year calendar by 6 

(six) work days. The unit members’ agreement will be reduced accordingly. 

The work year reduction shall not affect the accrual of sick leave or district 

leave days. Each member’s pay reduction as a result of this work-year 

reduction shall be applied evenly over each pay period during the relevant 

school year.  

b. Change of work year calendar is conditional on all employee groups 

(classified, certificated, administrators, confidential) accepting the reduction in 

work days. 



            
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Negotiations:  Confidential 2012_13 EMPLOYEE COUNTER  Proposal June 2012                             Page 2 of 5 

 

 

a. Confidential Employees accept no concession with change of 2012-2013 

work year calendar.  

 

b. Confidential Employees agree to re-address the options in November 

2012 following confirmation of fiscal state and federal revenues. 

Acceptance of any change in work year calendar is conditional on all 

employee groups accepting a reduction. 

 

4. Sunset the following Early Retirement/Golden Handshake option out of the 

Confidential Employees agreement, effective July 1, 2012: 

“Early Retirement/Golden Handshake: 
 

Confidential unit members with a minimum of 25 years of experience five (5) years with the 

District/County, who have reached the age of 55, may elect in writing to take advantage of 

their choice of one (1) of the following offers: 

A. One (1) year of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as required by 
health care provider) for medical, dental and vision plans for the retiree, spouse and 
family, or 

 
B. $12,064.50  A lump sum dollar amount per year (taxable) for the term of one (1) 

year. 
 

This Golden Handshake is contingent upon formal written notification of retirement 

/resignation being submitted on or before April 15  of the last year of service.  This offer must 

be formalized to show a savings to the employer on a case-by-case basis.” 

 
Add language: “Full time Confidential employees and Confidential employees 

working a minimum of .5 FTE (20 hours weekly), in current active status as of July 1, 

2012, shall be grandfathered into the early retirement/golden handshake option 

offered through July 1, 2012, and remain eligible until CalPERS retirement and 

separation from District/County employment.” 

 

Confidential Employees counter offer with additional language to include current 

employees working a minimum of .5 FTE (20 hours weekly) shall be grandfathered 

into the early retirement/golden handshake. 

 

5. 2012-2013 Retirement Incentive 

For the 2012-2013 school year, a full-time Confidential employee with a minimum of 

twenty-five (25) years experience with the District or SCOE and who has reached 



            
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Negotiations:  Confidential 2012_13 EMPLOYEE COUNTER  Proposal June 2012                             Page 3 of 5 

 

the age of 55 by July 1, 2012, OR a full-time Confidential employee who has a 

combination of 75 years of service with the District or SCOE and age (CalPERS 

creditable service and age at July 1, 2012), are offered a choice of one (1) of the 

following: 

A. One (1) Two (2) years of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate 
as required by health care provider) for medical, dental and vision plans for the 
retiree, spouse and family, capped at the employer dollar contribution in the 
year of the unit member’s final year of service; or 

 

B. $12,064.50  $13,840.50 lump sum dollar amount per year (subject to federal 
tax, state tax, social security and Medicare) for the term of one (1)  two (2) 
years.  

 
This one-time early retirement incentive offer is contingent upon formal written 
notification of retirement being submitted to the superintendent on or before  
July 1, 2012.  A Confidential employee must commit to an effective irrevocable 

retirement date of not later than November 1, 2012.  This offer must be formalized to 

show a savings to the employer on a case-by-case basis. Offer sunsets July 1, 

2012.  

 

A retired employee is a person who is receiving or has applied to receive monthly 

benefits from the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 

effective within 60 days from the unit member’s final date of employment with the 

District/SCOE. 

 

In addition to Option A or B of the 2011-2012 Retirement Incentive, a $5,000 lump 

sum dollar amount will be offered to the employee if an irrevocable “letter of 

retirement”  is received by the District or SCOE Superintendent no later than July 1, 

2012, at 5:00pm.  The lump sum dollar amount is subject to federal tax, state tax, 

social security and Medicare, and is payable to the employee no later than January 

31, 2013. 

 
Confidential Employees counter offer: 
A. Two (2) years of retiree health and welfare benefits (at the tiered rate as 

required by health care provider) for medical, dental and vision plans for 
the retiree, spouse and family, capped at the employer dollar contribution 
in the year of the unit member’s final year of service; or 

 
B. $12,064.50  $13,840.50 lump sum dollar amount per year (subject to 

federal tax, state tax, social security and Medicare) for the term of one (1)  
two (2) years.  

 
 



            
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Negotiations:  Confidential 2012_13 EMPLOYEE COUNTER  Proposal June 2012                             Page 4 of 5 

 

Confidential Employees counter offer with zero (0) lump sum dollar incentive 
exclusive of the $13,840.50 for two years option. 

 
 

6. ARTICLE IV, VACATION:  
Restructure vacation leave entitlement effective July 1, 2012 

 
“Annual vacation leave for Confidential employees shall be on a monthly accrual 
method.  Part-time positions shall receive a pro-rated portion of the following full time 
entitlement: 
 
YEARS OF SERVICE      ANNUAL VACATION ENTITLEMENT      MONTHLY ACCRUAL 

One to Five Years      Ten working days (80) hours  6.667 hours 
Six to Ten Years      Fifteen working days (120 hours) 10. hours 
Eleven Plus Years      Twenty working days (160 hours) 13.334 hours 
 
All vacation leave shall be taken at a time convenient to the Employer with prior 
approval of the employer.  An Employee shall use her/his annual vacation entitlement 
in the year earned or in the following year. 
 

Full-time and part-time employees eligible for vacation entitlement and in current 

active permanent or probationary status as of July 1, 2012, shall be grandfathered 

into the current collective bargaining unit vacation leave entitlement language, 

concluding June 30, 2012.” 

 

Confidential Employees have no objection to the restructured vacation accrual.  

 

 

7. The following positions will cease to be considered Confidential positions within the 

Sierra County Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

effective July 1, 2012: 

 Receptionist/Production Secretary 

 Administrative Assistant 

 School Secretary 

 Accounting Technician 

 Payroll Clerk 

 Account Technician III 

 County Support Secretary (SCOE) 

Future hires in above mentioned positions will be placed in the Classified Employee 

job category. 

Full time or part-time permanent or probationary Confidential employees in current 

active status in the District or SCOE as of July 1, 2012, shall be grandfathered into 



            
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Negotiations:  Confidential 2012_13 EMPLOYEE COUNTER  Proposal June 2012                             Page 5 of 5 

 

the Confidential employee job description without loss of status, benefits or 

seniority. 

Confidential Employees counter offer with clarification language. Current (as of July 

1, 2012) employees identified as a Confidential employee serving in a Confidential 

position, shall retain their transfer and “bumping” rights into future Confidential-

turned-Classified position vacancies. Current (July 1, 2012) permanent full time or 

part-time Classified employees shall NOT have transfer nor bumping rights into a 

Confidential-turned-Classified position. For example, a Classified Employee, 

Instructional Aide, shall not have transfer or bumping rights into a vacant School 

Secretary position; only current Confidential employees have transfer rights into a 

Confidential-turned-Classified position.   

8. Develop bylaws for Confidential employees as mutually agreed upon by both 

employer(s) and Confidential employees. 

Re-Openers for 2013-2014 School Year 

1.  DAYS AND HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT 
 

a. As a mutual re-opener, Confidential Employees will consider a reduction in 

the 2013-2014 work day calendar contingent on all groups of employees 

offering a concession equitable to an eleven and twelve month Confidential 

employee work year. 

 

2. ARTICLE III, HEALTH BENEFITS 
 

3. SALARY 
 

4. RETIREMENT INCENTIVE 

 

5. Develop language for bargaining agreement articles as mutually agreed upon by 
both employer(s) and bargaining unit. 

 

Presented by:  Sierra County Board of Education, June 12, 2012 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board,  

June 12, 2012 

z:Negotiations/Confidential 2012_2013 Emplyee Counter Proposal June 2012 

 

 



 CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES  
 

COMPLETION OF BARGAINING 2012-2013 
 

The SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SIERRA COUNTY 
OFFICE OF EDUCATION Confidential Employees voluntarily waives and relinquishes 
the right to meet and negotiate re-openers for school year 2012-2013, and agree that 
the Employer shall not be obligated to meet and negotiate with respect to any additional 
subject or matter. Nothing shall preclude the parties from meeting and negotiating by 
mutual consent. 
 
  
 
For the Confidential Employees:  For the Employer: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Rose Asquith, Representative  Stanford J. Hardeman, Superintendent 
Sierra-Plumas/Sierra County   Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
Confidential Employees   Sierra County Office of Education 
  
 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Michael Moore, President   Allen Wright, President 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School  Sierra County Board of Education 
District Governing Board 
 
 
Presented to the Governing Board(s): June 12, 2012 
 
Passed by Governing Board(s):__________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
z: Negotiations/ Confidential 2012_13 Completion of Bargaining 





California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

210 Family training, counseling, and home visits (ages 0–2 only): This
service includes: services provided by social workers, psychologists, or other
qualified personnel to assist the family in understanding the special needs of
the child and enhancing the child’s development. Note: Services provided by
specialists (such as medical services, nursing services, occupational therapy,
and physical therapy) for a specific function should be coded under the
appropriate service category, even if the services were delivered in the home.

X

34 Code of Federal
Regulations  (CFR )

sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

220 Medical services (for evaluation only) (ages 0–2 only): Services provided
by a licensed physician to determine a child’s developmental status and need
for early intervention services.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

230 Nutrition services (ages 0–2 only): These services include conducting
assessments in: nutritional history and dietary intake; anthropometric,
biochemical, and clinical variables; feeding skills and feeding problems; and
food habits and food preferences.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

240 Service coordination (ages 0–2 only) X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

250 Special instruction (ages 0-2 only): Special instruction includes: the design
of learning environments and activities that promote the child’s acquisition of
skills in a variety of developmental areas, including cognitive processes and
social interaction; curriculum planning, including the planned interaction of
personnel, materials, and time and space, that leads to achieving the
outcomes in the child’s individualized family service plan (IFSP); providing
families with information, skills, and support related to enhancing the skill
development of the child; and working with the child to enhance the child’s
development.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 1 of 22

250 Special instruction (ages 0-2 only): Special instruction includes: the design
of learning environments and activities that promote the child’s acquisition of
skills in a variety of developmental areas, including cognitive processes and
social interaction; curriculum planning, including the planned interaction of
personnel, materials, and time and space, that leads to achieving the
outcomes in the child’s individualized family service plan (IFSP); providing
families with information, skills, and support related to enhancing the skill
development of the child; and working with the child to enhance the child’s
development.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

260 Special education aide in regular development class, childcare center,
or family childcare home (ages 0–2 only) X 34 CFR  sections

300.34 (c)(3), 300.226
270 Respite care services (ages 0–2 only): Through the IFSP process, short-

term care given in-home or out-of-home, which temporarily relieves families
of the ongoing responsibility for specialized care for child with a disability.
(Note: only for infants and toddlers from birth through 2, but under 3.)

X 34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(3), 300.226

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 1 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

330 Specialized academic instruction: Adapting, as appropriate to the needs of
the child with a disability, the content, methodology, or delivery of instruction
to ensure access of the child to the general curriculum, so that he or she can
meet the educational standards within the jurisdiction of the public agency
that apply to all children.

X 34 CFR  Section
300.39(b)(3)

340 Intensive individual instruction: IEP Team determination that student
requires additional support for all or part of the day to meet his or her IEP
goals.

X 30 California Education
Code (EC ) Section 56364

350 Individual and small group instruction: Instruction delivered one-to-one or
in a small group as specified in an IEP enabling the individual(s) to
participate effectively in the total school program. X

5 California Code of
Regulations  (CCR ) Section

3051;
30 EC  Section 56441.2

415 Language and speech: Language and speech services provide remedial
intervention for eligible individuals with difficulty understanding or using
spoken language. The difficulty may result from problems with articulation
(excluding abnormal swallowing patterns, if that is the sole assessed
disability); abnormal voice quality, pitch, or loudness; fluency; hearing loss; or
the acquisition, comprehension, or expression of spoken language.
Language deficits or speech patterns resulting from unfamiliarity with the
English language and from environmental, economic or cultural factors are
not included. Services include specialized instruction and services:
monitoring, reviewing, and consultation, and may be direct or indirect,
including the use of a speech consultant.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.1;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(15),
300.8 (c)(11)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 2 of 22

415 Language and speech: Language and speech services provide remedial
intervention for eligible individuals with difficulty understanding or using
spoken language. The difficulty may result from problems with articulation
(excluding abnormal swallowing patterns, if that is the sole assessed
disability); abnormal voice quality, pitch, or loudness; fluency; hearing loss; or
the acquisition, comprehension, or expression of spoken language.
Language deficits or speech patterns resulting from unfamiliarity with the
English language and from environmental, economic or cultural factors are
not included. Services include specialized instruction and services:
monitoring, reviewing, and consultation, and may be direct or indirect,
including the use of a speech consultant.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.1;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.34 (c)(15),
300.8 (c)(11)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 2 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

425 Adapted physical education: Direct physical education services provided by
an adapted physical education specialist to pupils who have needs that
cannot be adequately satisfied in other physical education programs as
indicated by assessment and evaluation of motor skills performance and
other areas of need. It may include individually designed developmental
activities, games, sports, and rhythms, for strength development and fitness
suited to the capabilities, limitations, and interests of individual students with
disabilities who may not safely, successfully, or meaningfully engage in
unrestricted participation in the vigorous activities of the general or modified
physical education program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.5;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.108, 300.39 (b)(2)

435 Health and nursing–specialized physical health care services:
Specialized physical health care services means those health services
prescribed by the child’s licensed physician and surgeon, requiring medically
related training of the individual who performs the services and which are
necessary during the school day to enable the child to attend school (5 CCR
Section 3051.12[b]). Specialized physical health care services include but are
not limited to suctioning, oxygen administration, catheterization, nebulizer
treatments, insulin administration, and glucose testing.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;
30 EC  sections 56363,

49423.5(d)
34 CFR  Section 300.107;

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 3 of 22

435 Health and nursing–specialized physical health care services:
Specialized physical health care services means those health services
prescribed by the child’s licensed physician and surgeon, requiring medically
related training of the individual who performs the services and which are
necessary during the school day to enable the child to attend school (5 CCR
Section 3051.12[b]). Specialized physical health care services include but are
not limited to suctioning, oxygen administration, catheterization, nebulizer
treatments, insulin administration, and glucose testing.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;
30 EC  sections 56363,

49423.5(d)
34 CFR  Section 300.107;

436 Health and nursing–other services: This includes services that are
provided to individuals with exceptional needs by a qualified individual
pursuant to an IEP when a student has health problems which require
nursing intervention beyond basic school health services. Services include
managing the health problem, consulting with staff, group and individual
counseling, making appropriate referrals, and maintaining communication
with agencies and health care providers. These services do not include any
physician supervised or specialized health care service. IEP required health
and nursing services are expected to supplement the regular health services
program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.12;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.107

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 3 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

445 Assistive technology services: Any specialized training or technical support
for the incorporation of assistive devices, adapted computer technology, or
specialized media with the educational programs to improve access for
students. The term includes a functional analysis of the student's needs for
assistive technology; selecting, designing, fitting, customizing, or repairing
appropriate devices; coordinating services with assistive technology devices;
training or technical assistance for students with a disability, the student's
family, individuals providing education or rehabilitation services, and
employers.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  sections
300.6, 300.105

450 Occupational therapy: Occupational Therapy (OT) includes services to
improve student's educational performance, postural stability, self-help
abilities, sensory processing and organization, environmental adaptation and
use of assistive devices, motor planning and coordination, visual perception
and integration, social and play abilities, and fine motor abilities. Both direct
and indirect services may be provided within the classroom, other
educational settings, or the home, in groups or individually, and may include
therapeutic techniques to develop abilities, adaptations to the student's
environment or curriculum, and consultation and collaboration with other staff
and parents. Services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a qualified
occupational therapist registered with the American Occupational Therapy
Certification Board.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(6)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 4 of 22

450 Occupational therapy: Occupational Therapy (OT) includes services to
improve student's educational performance, postural stability, self-help
abilities, sensory processing and organization, environmental adaptation and
use of assistive devices, motor planning and coordination, visual perception
and integration, social and play abilities, and fine motor abilities. Both direct
and indirect services may be provided within the classroom, other
educational settings, or the home, in groups or individually, and may include
therapeutic techniques to develop abilities, adaptations to the student's
environment or curriculum, and consultation and collaboration with other staff
and parents. Services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a qualified
occupational therapist registered with the American Occupational Therapy
Certification Board.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(6)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 4 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

460 Physical therapy: These services are provided, pursuant to an IEP, by a
registered physical therapist, or physical therapist assistant, when
assessment shows a discrepancy between gross motor performance and
other educational skills. Physical therapy includes, but is not limited to, motor
control and coordination, posture and balance, self-help, functional mobility,
accessibility and use of assistive devices. Services may be provided within
the classroom, other educational settings or in the home, and may occur in
groups or individually. These services may include adaptations to the
student's environment and curriculum, selected therapeutic techniques and
activities, and consultation and collaborative interventions with staff and
parents.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.6;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section
 300.34 (c)(9); California

Business and Professions
Code

(B&PC ) Chapter 5.7
sections 2600–2696;

Government Code  (GC )
Interagency Agreement

Chapter 26.5
Section 7575(a)(2)

510 Individual counseling: One-to-one counseling, provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP. Counseling may focus on such student aspects
as education, career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on
learning problems or guidance programs for students. Individual counseling
is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.9;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(2)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 5 of 22

510 Individual counseling: One-to-one counseling, provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP. Counseling may focus on such student aspects
as education, career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on
learning problems or guidance programs for students. Individual counseling
is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.9;

34 CFR  Section
300.34(c)(2)

515 Counseling and guidance: Counseling in a group setting, provided by a
qualified individual pursuant to an IEP. Group counseling is typically social
skills development, but may focus on such student aspects as education,
career, personal, or be with parents or staff members on learning problems
or guidance programs for students. IEP required group counseling is
expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.
Guidance services include interpersonal, intrapersonal, or family
interventions, performed in an individual or group setting by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP. Specific programs include social skills
development, self-esteem building, parent training, and assistance to special
education students supervised by staff credentialed to serve special
education students. These services are expected to supplement the regular
guidance and counseling program.

X
34 CFR sections

300.24.(b)(2), 300.306;
5 CCR  Section 3051.9

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 5 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

520 Parent counseling: Individual or group counseling provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP to assist the parent(s) of special education
students in better understanding and meeting their child's needs and may
include parenting skills or other pertinent issues. IEP required parent
counseling is expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling
program.

X

5 CCR Section 3051.11;
34 CFR  Section

300.34(c)(8)

525 Social work services: Social work services, provided by a qualified
individual pursuant to an IEP, include, but are not limited to, preparing a
social or developmental history of a child with a disability, group and
individual counseling with the child and family, working with those problems
in a child's living situation (home, school, and community) that affect the
child's adjustment in school, and mobilizing school and community resources
to enable the child to learn as effectively as possible in his or her educational
program. Social work services are expected to supplement the regular
guidance and counseling program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.13;
34 CFR  Section

300.34(c)(14)

530 Psychological services: These services, provided by a credentialed or
licensed psychologist pursuant to an IEP, include interpreting assessment
results for parents and staff in implementing the IEP, obtaining and
interpreting information about child behavior and conditions related to
learning, and planning programs of individual and group counseling and
guidance services for children and parents. These services may include
consulting with other staff in planning school programs to meet the special
needs of children as indicated in the IEP. IEP required psychological services
are expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.10;
34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(10)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 6 of 22

530 Psychological services: These services, provided by a credentialed or
licensed psychologist pursuant to an IEP, include interpreting assessment
results for parents and staff in implementing the IEP, obtaining and
interpreting information about child behavior and conditions related to
learning, and planning programs of individual and group counseling and
guidance services for children and parents. These services may include
consulting with other staff in planning school programs to meet the special
needs of children as indicated in the IEP. IEP required psychological services
are expected to supplement the regular guidance and counseling program.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.10;
34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(10)

535 Behavior intervention services: A systematic implementation of procedures
designed to promote lasting, positive changes in the student's behavior
resulting in greater access to a variety of community settings, social contacts,
public events, and placement in the least restrictive environment.

X
 5 CCR  Section 3001(d);

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(10)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 6 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

540 Day treatment services: Structured education, training, and support
services to address the student’s mental health needs. X

Health & Safety Code,
Div.2, Chap.3, Article 1,

Section 1502(a)
545 Residential treatment services: A 24-hour, out-of-home placement that

provides intensive therapeutic services to support the educational program. X

Welfare and Institutions
Code,

Part 2, Chapter 2.5,
Art. 1, Section 5671

610 Specialized services for low incidence disabilities: Low incidence
services are defined as those provided to the student population who have
orthopedic impairment (OI), visual impairment (VI), who are deaf, hard of
hearing (HH), or deaf-blind (DB). Typically, services are provided in
education settings by an itinerant teacher or an itinerant teacher/specialist.
Consultation is provided to the teacher, staff, and parents as needed. These
services must be clearly written in the student's IEP, including frequency and
duration of the services to the student.

X
5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;
34 CFR  Section 300.34

710 Specialized deaf and hard of hearing services: These services include
speech therapy, speech reading, auditory training, and/or instruction in the
student's mode of communication. Rehabilitative and educational services;
adapting curricula, methods, and the learning environment; and special
consultation to students, parents, teachers, and other school personnel.

X
5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;
34 CFR  Section 300.34

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 7 of 22

710 Specialized deaf and hard of hearing services: These services include
speech therapy, speech reading, auditory training, and/or instruction in the
student's mode of communication. Rehabilitative and educational services;
adapting curricula, methods, and the learning environment; and special
consultation to students, parents, teachers, and other school personnel.

X
5 CCR  sections

3051.16, 3051.18;
34 CFR  Section 300.34

715 Interpreter services: Sign language interpretation of spoken language to
individuals, whose communication is normally sign language, by a qualified
sign language interpreter.  This includes conveying information through the
sign system of the student or consumer and tutoring students regarding class
content through the sign system of the student.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.16;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(4)

720 Audiological services: These services include measurements of acuity,
monitoring amplification, and frequency modulation system use. Consultation
services with teachers, parents, or speech pathologists must be identified in
the IEP as to reason, frequency, and duration of contact; infrequent contact
is considered assistance and would not be included.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.2;

34 CFR  Section
300.34 (c)(1)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 7 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

725 Specialized vision services: This is a broad category of services provided
to students with visual impairments. It includes assessment of functional
vision; curriculum modifications necessary to meet the student's educational
needs including Braille, large type, and aural media; instruction in areas of
need; concept development and academic skills; communication skills
including alternative modes of reading and writing; and social, emotional,
career, vocational, and independent living skills. It may include coordination
of other personnel providing services to the students such as transcribers,
readers, counselors, orientation and mobility specialists, career/vocational
staff, and others, and collaboration with the student's classroom teacher.

X 5 CCR  Section 3030(d);
30 EC  Section 56364.1

730 Orientation and mobility: Students with identified visual impairments are
trained in body awareness and to understand how to move. Students are
trained to develop skills to enable them to travel safely and independently
around the school and in the community. It may include consultation services
to parents regarding their children requiring such services according to an
IEP.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;
30 EC  Section 56363;

34 CFR  Section 300.34
(c)(7)

735 Braille transcription: Any transcription services to convert materials from
print to Braille. It may include textbooks, tests, worksheets, or anything
necessary for instruction. The transcriber should be qualified in English
Braille as well as Nemeth Code (mathematics) and be certified by appropriate
agency.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;
30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  Section 300.8

(c)(13)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 8 of 22

735 Braille transcription: Any transcription services to convert materials from
print to Braille. It may include textbooks, tests, worksheets, or anything
necessary for instruction. The transcriber should be qualified in English
Braille as well as Nemeth Code (mathematics) and be certified by appropriate
agency.

X

5 CCR  Section 3051.16;
30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  Section 300.8

(c)(13)

740 Specialized orthopedic services: Specially designed instruction related to
the unique needs of students with orthopedic disabilities, including
specialized materials and equipment. X

5 CCR  sections
3030(e), 3051.16;

30 EC  Section 56363;
34 CFR  Section 300.8

(c)(8)
745 Reading services X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 8 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

750 Note taking services: Any specialized assistance given to the student for
the purpose of taking notes when the student is unable to do so
independently. This may include, but is not limited to, copies of notes taken
by another student or transcription of tape-recorded information from a class
or aide designated to take notes. This does not include instruction in the
process of learning how to take notes.

X 5 CCR Section 3051.16

755 Transcription services: Any transcription service to convert materials from
print to a mode of communication suitable for the student. This may also
include dictation services as it may pertain to textbooks, tests, worksheets, or
anything necessary for instruction.

X 5 CCR  Section 3051.16

760 Recreation services, includes therapeutic recreation: Therapeutic
recreation and specialized instructional programs designed to assist pupils to
become as independent as possible in leisure activities, and when possible
and appropriate, facilitate the pupil's integration into general recreation
programs.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.15;
34 CFR  Section 300.34

(c)(11)

820 College awareness: College awareness is the result of acts that promote
and increase student learning about higher education opportunities,
information, and options that are available including, but not limited to, career
planning, course prerequisites, admission eligibility, and financial aid.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 9 of 22

820 College awareness: College awareness is the result of acts that promote
and increase student learning about higher education opportunities,
information, and options that are available including, but not limited to, career
planning, course prerequisites, admission eligibility, and financial aid.

X 34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

830 Vocational assessment, counseling, guidance, and career assessment:
Organized educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of
individuals for paid or unpaid employment, and may include provision for
work experience, job coaching, development and/or placement, and
situational assessment. This includes career counseling to assist a student in
assessing his/her aptitudes, abilities, and interests in order to make realistic
career decisions.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

840 Career awareness: Transition services include a provision for self-advocacy,
career planning, and career guidance. This also emphasizes the need for
coordination between these provisions and the Perkins Act to ensure that
students with disabilities in middle schools will be able to access vocational
education funds.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 9 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

850 Work experience education: Work experience education means organized
educational programs that are directly related to the preparation of individuals
for paid or unpaid employment, or for additional preparation for a career
requiring other than a baccalaureate or advanced degree.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

855 Job Coaching: Job coaching is a service that provides assistance and
guidance to an employee who may be experiencing difficulty with one or
more aspects of the daily job tasks and functions. The service is provided by
a job coach who is highly successful, skilled and trained on the job who can
determine how the employee that is experiencing difficulty learns best and
formulate a training plan to improve job performance.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

860 Mentoring: Mentoring is a sustained coaching relationship between a
student and teacher through ongoing involvement. The mentor offers
support, guidance, encouragement and assistance as the learner encounters
challenges with respect to a particular area such as acquisition of job skills.
Mentoring can be either formal, as in planned, structured instruction, or
informal that occurs naturally through friendship, counseling, and collegiality
in a casual, unplanned way.

X
5 CCR  Section 3051.14;

34 CFR  sections
300.39 (b)(5), 300.43

865 Agency linkages (referral and placement): Service coordination and case
management that facilitates the linkage of individualized education programs
under this part and individualized family service plans under part C with
individualized service plans under multiple Federal and State programs, such
as title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (vocational rehabilitation), title XIX
of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), and title XVI of the Social Security Act
(supplemental security income).

X
30 EC  Section 56341.5 (f);
 34 CFR  Section 300.344

(3)(b)

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 10 of 22

865 Agency linkages (referral and placement): Service coordination and case
management that facilitates the linkage of individualized education programs
under this part and individualized family service plans under part C with
individualized service plans under multiple Federal and State programs, such
as title I of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (vocational rehabilitation), title XIX
of the Social Security Act (Medicaid), and title XVI of the Social Security Act
(supplemental security income).

X
30 EC  Section 56341.5 (f);
 34 CFR  Section 300.344

(3)(b)

870 Travel training (includes mobility training)
X

5 CCR  Section 3051.3;
34 CFR  sections 300.39

(c)(7)
890 Other transition services: These services may include program

coordination, case management and meetings, and crafting linkages
between schools and between schools and postsecondary agencies.

X

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 10 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

 Code Special Education Service Category Descriptions Adopted Modified
Not

Currently
 Utilized

Compliance Standard
(Legal Requirement*)

900 Other special education/related services: Any other specialized service
required for a student with a disability to receive educational benefit. X

* B&PC –Business and Proessional Codes
    CCR –California Code of Regulations
    CFR –Code of Federal Regulations
    EC –Education Code
    GC –Government Code

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 11 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 11 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 12 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 12 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 13 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 13 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 14 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 14 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 15 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 15 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 16 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 16 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 17 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 17 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 18 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 18 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 19 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 19 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 20 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 20 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 21 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 21 of 22



California Department of Education
Form ASP-01a (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area:

California Special Education Management Information System
 Service Descriptions

Special Education Division

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 22 of 22

Services will be provided in the school of attendance unless otherwise determined by the individualized education program (IEP) team.

Page 22 of 22



Page _______ of _______

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division
ASP–02a 001 (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN (001)
Location

A. The services listed in the
boxes to the right () are
provided at all schools in
the LEA.

330

B. List all physical locations
where services are
provided in the LEA. Also,
list any other services that
are provided and not listed
in box A above.

Nature of Service
List the California Special Education Management Information System
(CASEMIS) code associated with each service that is provided at the location
listed in the left-hand column.

Downieville Jr/Sr 330 510 515 535 820 830 840 850 890 10
Loyalton High School 330 510 515 535 820 830 840 850 890 10
Downieville Elementary 330 415 425 510 840 10
Loyalton Elementary 330 415 425 510 840 10
Loyalton Middle School 330 415 510 840 10
Sierra County Jail 330 830 21
Loyalton Preschool 330 415 425 450 460 10

Please ensure that the following are included on this form:
10–Public Day School 11–Public Residential School
15–Special Education Center/Facility 19–Other Public School/Facilities
20–Continuation School 22–Alternative Work Education Center/Work Study Program
24–Independent Study 31–Community School
55–Charter School (operated by an LEA/District/County

Office of Education)
56–Charter School (operated as an LEA)



Page ____ of  _____

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division
ASP–02a 002 (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Other Facilities (002)
List the site name and type of
facility providing services to
students enrolled in the LEA

Services Provided at this Location

Site Name

Type of
Facility

(see
below)

List the California Special Education Information
System (CASEMIS) code associated with each service

that is provided at the location listed in the left-hand
column

Sierra County Jail 32 330 830

Use these codes to identify the type of facility providing services to students ages 6–22:
30–Juvenile Court School 32–Correctional Institution or

Incarceration Facility
40–Home Instruction

45–Hospital Facility 50–Community College 51–Adult Education Program
70–Nonpublic Day School 71/72–Nonpublic Residential School 79–Nonpublic Agency



Page ____  of  _____

California Department of Education                                                                                Special Education Division
ASP–02a 003 (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Infant Services (003)
List the site name and type of
facility providing services to
students enrolled in the LEA

Services Provided at this Location

Site Name
Type of
Facility

List the California Special Education Management
Information System (CASEMIS) code associated with

each service that is provided at the location listed in the
left-hand column

None

Use these codes to identify the type of facility where Infant Services (ages 0–3) are provided:
00–No School (Ages 0–5 only) 10–Public Day School
11–Public Residential School 19–Other Public School/Facilities
40–Home 45–Hospital Facility
62–Child Development or Child Care Facility 65–Extended Day Care



Use these numbers to identify the type of facility where Pre-School Services (ages 3–5) are provided:
40–Home Instruction 45–Hospital Facility
61–Head Start Program 62–Child Development or Child Care Facility
63–State Preschool Program 64–Private Preschool
65–Extended Day Care Program

Page ____ of _____

California Department of Education                                                                                  Special Education Division
ASP–02a 004 (rev May 2012)

Special Education Local Plan Area: Local Educational Agency:

Pre-School Services (004)
List the site name and type of
facility providing services to
students enrolled in the LEA

Services Provided at this Location

Site Name Type of
Facility

List the California Special Education
Management Information System (CASEMIS)

code associated with each service that is
provided at the location listed in the left-hand

column
Loyalton Preschool 10 330 415 425 450 460
















































































































































	1SCOE_AGENDA_6_12.pdf
	2SCOEMAY12REP.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	









	3May 8, 2012 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	3SCOEMAY12CHKS.pdf
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	



	4Policies.pdf
	5Notice of Public Hearing Negotiations_Response.pdf
	6Confidential 2012_13 Employee Counter Proposal June 2012.pdf
	7Confidential  2012_13 COMPLETION OF BARGAINING.pdf
	8Notice of Public Hearing SELPA.pdf
	9SELPA.pdf
	

	10SELPA.pdf
	11SELPA.pdf
	12SELPA.pdf
	13SELPA.pdf
	14Notice of Public Hearing BUDGET SCOE.pdf
	15SCOE Budget 12-13.pdf

